
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 
prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff 
or to a subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which 
may not be delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City 
Council action.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 
prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 
 
 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                             

 
 
 
 

Mayor Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, Council Member 
Arizmendi, Council Member Delmar, and Council Member Goss 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                     Regarding Closed Session Items 
 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 
 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—Anticipated Litigation 
(Government Code Section 54946.9(d)(2) 

 Number of potential cases:  1 
 
 

2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 
(Government Code Section 54956.8 

 Property: 700 N. Sunnyside Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA 91024 
Agency Negotiator: Gabriel Engeland, City Manager 

 

 

AGENDA  
SPECIAL MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL,  
 

Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
 

6:00 PM 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 
Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 

 John Harabedian, Mayor  

John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 
 



AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Tuesday, July 09, 2019 

 

6:30 PM 

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre, California 91024 

John Harabedian, Mayor 

John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Mayor Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia, Council Member Arizmendi, Council Member 
Delmar,  and Council Member Goss. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INSPIRATION: 
Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia. 

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA: 
Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 

 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
City Attorney report from the closed sessions on July 23, 2019 and September 10, 2019. 

 

APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL MEETNG MINUTES: 
Approval of the City Council meeting minutes from July 23, 2019 Council meeting. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 
Reporting of Council Member activities related to City business. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Early in the meeting, the 
Council will also devote time for public comment on items not on the agenda. 

Under the Brown Act, the Council is prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, 
but the matter may be referred to staff or to a subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be 
limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be delegated.  These rules will be enforced 
but may be changed by appropriate City Council action. 



ACTION ITEMS 

1. CONSENT 
 

a) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-45 APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

It is recommended that the City Council approve Resolution 19-45 for approval of 
payment of City warrants in an aggregate amount of $472,074.36; Library 
warrants in an aggregate amount of $3,804.38; and payroll transfer in the 
aggregate amount of $696,525.87 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 and 
June 30, 2020. 
 

b) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-46 APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

It is recommended that the City Council approve Resolution 19-46 for approval of 
payment of City warrants in an aggregate amount of $303,168.57; Library 
warrants in an aggregate amount of $9,961.13; and payroll transfer in the 
aggregate amount of $348,816.08 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 
 

c) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-47 APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

It is recommended that the City Council approve Resolution 19-47 for approval of 
payment of City warrants in an aggregate amount of $150,116.31; Library 
warrants in an aggregate amount of $1,777.65; and payroll transfer in the 
aggregate amount of $391,097.79 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 
 

d) TREASURER’S REPORT FOR THE QUARTER ENDING MARCH 31, 2019 

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the Treasurer’s Report. 
 

e) RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 TO THE 2019 WATER 
MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $226,850. 

It is recommended that the City Council approve Change Order #1 to the 
construction contract previously awarded to Big Ben, Inc. in the amount of 
$226,850.00 for the inclusion of 700’ of 10 “ water main in Woodland Drive and 
Alta Vista Drive to the 2019 Water Main Replacement Project. 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

CITIZENS OPTION FOR PUBLIC SAFETY (COPS) GRANT FUNDING FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2019-2020 

Recommendation that the City Council hold a Public Hearing, receive testimony, 
and consider acceptance of grant funds from the COPS grant program and 
authorize appropriations and expenditures. 

 
3. DISCUSSION 

 

COMMUNITY GARDEN PROGRAM RESTRUCTURE 
Recommendation that the City Council suspend the Community Garden Program 
during the months from October 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 to allow staff to 
clean, measure, rebuild, and implement new policy and regulations.  It is also 
recommended that the City Council authorize staff to explore alternate locations 
for the Community Garden Program. 



ACTION ITEMS 
Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such 
matters, including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s 
website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. 
Sierra Madre Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 
 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 
Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 
 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 
If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Clerk’s 
Office at (626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council will adjourn to a Public Hearing at this same place on September 24, 2019. 



Page 1 of 1 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-23-2019 

 

Tuesday, July 23, 2019 - 6:30 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor John Harabedian called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Assistant City Clerk Laura Aguilar 

called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

 

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk 

James Carlson, Management Analyst 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Hillary Guirola-Leon, Finance Manager 

Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager 

Colby Konisek, Finance Director 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INSPIRATION: 

 

Mayor Harabedian led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS PRESENTED: 

 

Mayor Harabedian asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Council Member Delmar moved to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve. 

 

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent: None 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed by a unanimous vote. 

 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



Page 2 of 2 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-23-2019 

 

 

The motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of June 11, 2019 as presented 

was passed by a vote of four (4) yes votes and one (1) abstain. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

A. Council Member Delmar had nothing to report. 
 

B. Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia reported that he attended a meeting of the San Gabriel Valley 
Council of Governments regarding a Coyote management Plan for Public Outreach.  Capoccia 
voted no because he did not feel it was appropriate for the COG to take on more contract-type 
projects at a cost of $10,000 without knowing how many cities would participate.  .  

 
C. Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi thanked Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia for voting “no.”  Also, 

Council Member Arizmendi and Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia met yesterday with the sub-committee 
for the Commercial Code Update so hopefully we will be moving on that.   

 
D. Council Member Gene Goss reported that he attended a Library Foundation meeting last night.  

They are moving ahead and about ready to start their publicity.  Their website is 
SierraMadreLibraryFoundation.org.  

 
E. Mayor John Harabedian reported that he hosted the annual Mayor’s breakfast with City staff.  We 

were able to honor and recognize our employees that have been with the City for 5, 10, 15, 20 
years.  The longest employee has been here for 25 years.  One of the employees, Meegan Tosh, 
is retiring.  Her last day is on Monday.  Please wish her a happy retirement. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

Mayor Harabedian opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.   

 

Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Harabedian closed Public Comment. 

 
AGENDA ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 Assistant City Clerk Aguilar gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar: 

 

a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-39 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 

MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS  

Recommendation that the City Council adopt Resolution 19-39 for approval of payment of City 

warrants in an aggregate amount of $1,172,144.73; Sierra Madre Library warrants in an 

aggregate amount of $13,126.41; and payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $352,389.07 

for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020. 

 

b) CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF BID FOR A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO  BIG BEN, 
INC. FOR THE 2019 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NO-TO 
EXCEED $1,263,875.00 
Recommendation that the City Council City Council award a construction contract in an amount 

not-to-exceed $1,263,875for the base bid plus alternate #1 of the 2019 Water Main 

Replacement Project to Big Ben, Inc. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-23-2019 

 

c) CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF PURCHASES AND SERVICES IN EXCESS  OF 
$60,000 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 
Recommendation that the City Council City Council authorize the purchase, services, supplies, 

and contracts listed and authorize encumbrance of funds based upon estimated annual needs 

for each department. 

 

d) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-41 DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE CITY 
MANAGER TO MAKE DETERMINATIONS REGARDING INDUSTRIAL  DISABILITY 
RETIREMENT AND TO SUBMIT EMPLOYER-ORIGINATED DISABILITY APPLICATIONS TO 
CALPERS 
Recommendation that the City Council adopt Resolution 19-41 Delegating Authority to the City 

Manager to Make Determinations Regarding Industrial Disability Retirement and to Submit 

Employer-Originated Disability Applications to CalPERS. 

 

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on Consent Items 1a – 1d. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to approve Consent Items 1a – 1d as presented. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion to approve. 

 

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members 

 Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

Noes:    None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain:  None 

 

The motion to approve Consent Items 1a – 1d as presented was passed by a unanimous vote. 

 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING - CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-42 APPROVING 

AMENDMENTS TO  THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 FEE SCHEDULE 
Recommendation that the City Council open a public hearing to receive testimony and consider 

approval of Resolution 19-42 amending the FY 2019 - 2020 Fee Schedule. 

 

City Manager Engeland requested that the third fee listed representing Open Space Rental and 

Bounce House fees be pulled because it is a policy discussion change and staff has not previously 

discussed these changes with Council.  Staff would like all other fees in the report considered for 

approval. 

 

Finance Manager Hillary Guirola-Leon gave the report. 

 

Mayor Harabedian asked the Council if there were any questions.  Seeing none, Mayor Harabedian 

opened the topic for public comment.  Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Harabedian closed 

public comment and brought the matter back to Council. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to approve Resolution 19-42 with amendments. 

  

Council Member Delmar seconded the motion to approve with amendments. 

 



Page 4 of 4 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-23-2019 

 

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members 

 Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:  None 

 

The motion to adopt Resolution 19-42 with amendments was passed by a unanimous vote. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING - 2019-2020 ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS – PUBLIC HERING AND 

RESOLUTION OF CONFIRMATION 19-43 AND RESOLUTION 19-44 SETTING 

ASSESSMENT RATES FOR AD VALOREM MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS 1, 3A, AND 

3B  
 

Recommendation that the City Council open a public hearing to receive testimony and consider 

approval of Resolution 19-43 confirming  assessment proceedings for Assessment Districts 3 and 5, 

Community Facilities District No. 1, E. Miramonte Sewer District, and E. Bonita Sewer District for 

Fiscal  Year 2019-2020; and approving the City Engineer’s Report; and approve Resolution 19-44 

setting tax rates for Ad Valorem Districts No. 1, 3A, and 3 B. 

 

City Engineer Kev Tcharkhoutian gave the report. 

 

Mayor Harabedian asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item.  No questions 

were asked. 

 

Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment.  Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian closed 

Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Capoccia made a motion to approve Resolutions 19-43 and 19-44. 

  

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion to approve. 

 

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members 

 Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:  None 

 

The motion to approve Resolutions 19-43 and 19-44 was passed by a unanimous voice vote. 

 

4. DISCUSSION – CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-40 AMENDING THE CITY’S 
CLASSIFICATION PLAN AND SALARY MATRIX  

Recommendation that the City Council Staff recommends City Council approve Resolution 19-40, 

Amending the Classification Plan and Salary Matrix for the following positions: 

 

  Creating a new full-time position of Police Lieutenant;  

  Creating a new full-time position of Services Division Supervisor; 

  Creating a new full-time position of Library Technician II; 

  Creating a new part-time position of Fire Recruit; 

  Creating part-time Intern positions; 



Page 5 of 5 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-23-2019 

 

  Updating Utilities Water Lead worker to Water Lead Worker/Sewer Lead   

  Worker; 

  Updating Fleet Mechanic range to be included as a skilled labor position. 

 
Human Resources Manager Hernandez gave the report. 

 

Mayor Harabedian brought the matter to Council for discussion.  Council discussed the matter then 

the Mayor opened for public comment.  Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Harabedian closed 

public comment and matter back to Council for a motion. 

 

Council Member Denise Delmar asked that the Intern Program be brought back to Council when it 

is ready. 

 

Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi made a motion to approve Resolution 19-40 amending the 

City’s Classification Plan and Salary Matrix. 

 

Council Member Denise Delmar seconded the motion. 

 

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members 

 Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:  None 

 

The motion to approve Resolution 19-40 was passed by a unanimous vote. 

 

 
5. CONSIDERATION OF  ADOPTING THE CITY’S COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 

Recommendation that the City Council approve the proposed Compensation Philosophy, a 

statement that documents the City’s  approach to establishing staff compensation.  

 

City Manager Engeland and Human Resources Manager Hernandez gave the report. 

 

Mayor Harabedian asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing 

no one, Mayor Harabedian closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for 

discussion.   

 

 

 Mayor Harabedian opened this item for Public Comment.  Seeing no one, Mayor Harabedian 

 closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.  

  

Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi made a motion to adopt the City’s Compensation Philosophy. 

 

Council Member Denise Delmar seconded the motion. 

 

Ayes: Mayor John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem John Capoccia, and Council Members 

 Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, and Gene Goss 

  Noes:      None 

  Absent:   None 

 Abstain:  None 



Page 6 of 6 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-23-2019 

 

 

The motion to approve Resolution 19-40 was passed by a unanimous vote. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Mayor Harabedian adjourned the meeting to a closed session at 7:38 pm. 

 

The Mayor and City Council returned to the open session and adjourned the regular meeting at 8:30 

pm.  THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 8:30 p.m. to 

a Regular meeting to be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2019, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council 

Chambers. 

  

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   John Harabedian, Mayor 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk   

 


























































































































	Special City Council Meeting Agenda - September 10, 2019
	City Council Meeting Agenda September 10 2019
	Council Meeting Minutes - 7-23-2019
	1a - Resolution 19-45 Approving Certain Demands
	1b - Resolution 19-46 Approving Certain Demands
	1c - Resolution 19-47 Approving Certain Demands
	1d - Treasurer's Report for Quarter ending March 31 2019
	1e - Change Order for the 2019 Water Main Replacement Project
	2 - PUBLIC HEARING - COPS Grant Funding
	3 - DISCUSSION - Community Garden Program Restructure

